
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Sub-Committee East 
Wednesday, 15th October, 2014 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee East, which 
will be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 15th October, 2014 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

(Directorate of Governance) 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564470 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), A Boyce, Mrs H Brady, 
W Breare-Hall, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, 
B Rolfe, D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting. 
 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 15 October 2014 
 

2 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties). 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 
 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 24) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on 17 

September 2014 (attached). 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 25 - 58) 
 

  (Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 15 October 2014 
 

3 

 
Background Papers: 
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Governance) Schedules of planning applications determined by the Head 
of Planning & Economic Development under delegated powers since the last meeting 
of the Sub-Committee could be inspected in the Members’ Room or on the Planning & 
Economic Development Information Desk at the Civic Offices in Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 15 October 2014 
 

4 

background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2014-15 
Members of the Committee: 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
  

Cllr Jones 

Cllr Waller 

Cllr Adams Cllr Boyce 

Cllr Breare-
Hall 

Cllr Church Cllr God 
 

Cllr Grigg 
 

Cllr Morgan 
 

Cllr Philip 
 

Cllr Rolfe 
 

Cllr Stallan 
 

Cllr 
Surtees 
 

Cllr  
Whitbread 
 

Cllr Janet 
Whitehouse 
 

Cllr Keska 

Cllr 
McEwen 
 

Cllr Brady 

Cllr Jon 
Whitehouse 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 

East 
Date: 17 September 2014  

    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 9.29 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), Mrs H Brady, T Church, 
P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, B Rolfe, D Stallan, 
B Surtees, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
 

  
Apologies: A Boyce, W Breare-Hall, J Philip and G Waller 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant), R Perrin (Democratic Services 
Assistant) and N Richardson (Assistant Director (Development 
Management)) 
 

  
 

23. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

24. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

25. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 August 2014 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record subject to Item 19 (b), Declarations of 
Interest, Councillor Surtees did not declare an interest in the item below: 
  
•                     EPF/1379/14 – Harlow Garden Centre, Canes Lane, Hastingwood, Harlow. 
 

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a)       Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor B Surtees 
declared a personal non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Area Planning Sub-Committee East  17 September 2014 

2 

virtue of being a Town Councillor. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudiial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
  
•                     EPF/1791/14 – Highfield, High Street, Ongar. 

(b)       Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor T Church 
declared a personal non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of being a Town Councillor. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
  
•                     EPF/1623/14 – Garage Site, Amesbury Close, Epping. 

27. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

28. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the planning applications numbered 1 – 6 be determined as set out in the 
schedule attached to these minutes. 
 

29. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1024/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land Rear of Royal Oak  

Oak Hill Road  
Stapleford Abbotts 
Essex  
RM4 1JL 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr P Lewis 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Outline application for five dwellings including determination of 
access, layout and scale. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=562852 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to letters of representation from residents of Nos. 1-8 
(inclusive) Kensington Park, Oak Hill Road, Tudor Close, Oak Hill Road and Woodlands, Oak Hill 
Road. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission or two years from the approval of the 
last of the reserved matters as defined in condition 2 below, whichever is the later. 
 

2 a)  Details of the reserved matters set out below ("the reserved matters") shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval within three years from the 
date of this permission: 
(i) appearance; and 
(ii) landscaping. 
b)  The reserved matters shall be carried out as approved. 
c)  Approval of all reserved matters shall be obtained from the Local Planning 
Authority in writing before any development is commenced. 
 

3 The permission hereby given shall not be implemented prior to the completion of the 
development permitted under planning permission EPF/1023/14. 
 

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions generally permitted by virtue of 

3Page 11



Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the prior 
written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

8 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan. 
 

9 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

4 Page 12



10 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

11 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

12 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

13 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

5Page 13



14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

15 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing. 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

16 Prior to first occupation of the development the applicant shall submit details, for the 
extension of the existing footway from the pub to the access, as shown in principal 
on drawing no.13.2310/P202 Rev D, to be approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, in consultation with the Highway Authority. The approved details shall then 
be implemented prior to first occupation. 
 

17 The public’s rights and ease of passage over public footpath no.33 Stapleford 
Abbotts shall be maintained free and unobstructed at all times. 
 

18 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include six 
one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator. 
 

19 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

20 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle 
parking and turning areas indicated on the approved plans, including any parking 
spaces for the mobility impaired, has been hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in 
parking bays. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in this form at all 
times. The parking and turning areas shall not be used for any purpose other than 
the parking and turning of vehicles that are related to the use of the development 
unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

6 Page 14



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1352/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Esperanza Nursery  

Stapleford Road  
Stapleford Abbotts  
Essex  
RM4 1EJ 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Tony Humphries 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Outline planning permission to demolish office, boiler house and 
two glasshouses, erect 2 no. two storey houses and detached 
garage block, lay out access drive and turning head, amenity and 
parking areas, alter vehicular access onto Stapleford Road and 
plant woodland/meadow, hedgerows and trees (Amended proposal 
to EPF/0964/13). 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=564311 
 
At the meeting, the representative of Stapleford Abbotts Parish Council confirmed that they 
supported the planning application. 
 
The Committee agreed with the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission, subject 
to deletion of the 2nd No. 2 reason, give the two policies referred to therein were not in conformity 
to the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt where there is a presumption against 
inappropriate development except in very special circumstances. The proposal is for 
inappropriate development. Whilst the applicant has advanced a case of very 
special circumstances, no such exceptional circumstances are apparent in this case 
that would be sufficient to outweigh the normal presumption against inappropriate 
development.   As such the proposal fails to comply with policy GB2A (which is 
consistent with policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework).   
 

2 Whilst this is an outline proposal, the plan layout shown and the indicative proposed 
two new dwellings will introduce buildings in a pattern that will encroach into the 
Green Belt. This will result in conspicuous buildings within the Green Belt that will 
harm the openness and rural character; this fails to accord with policies DBE4, CP2 
and GB7A of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations (which are consistent with 
policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework).   
 

7Page 15



 
3 The application fails to make provision for an affordable housing contribution 

contrary to policy H6A and H7A of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations (which 
are consistent with policies contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework).    
 

4 The proposals are situated in a rural and unsustainable location, isolated from public 
transport or local facilities, therefore encouraging dependence on private car use 
which is contrary to the aims and objectives of policies CP1, CP2, CP3, and ST1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alteration (which are consistent with policies contained 
within the National Planning Policy Framework).    

 
 
SUGGESTED WAY FORWARD 
 
The Committee suggested a way forward on any subsequent planning application as follows:- 
1. The two houses be brought towards the front part of the site, and 
2. Their sizes be reduced. 

8 Page 16



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1464/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 16 Orchard Drive  

Theydon Bois  
Epping  
Essex 
CM16 7DJ 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr N Taylor 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Hip to gable rear dormer and lantern roof light over kitchen flat roof 
by removing part of the existing pitched roof. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=564932 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 

9Page 17



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1484/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Calloways 

5A Clatterford End  
Toot Hill Road 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9QW 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Sarah Smart 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Outline application for erection of a pair of semi-detached houses 
to side of existing dwelling (all matters reserved). 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=565031 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to a letter of representation from 6 Clatterford End. 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL  
 

1 The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and is not considered to be infill 
development as defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  It is 
therefore inappropriate development in the Green Belt and, by definition, harmful.  
Furthermore, it fails to protect the openness of the Green Belt and there are no 
overriding very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green 
Belt.  The proposal is therefore contrary to policies GB2A and GB7A of the Adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations, and the aims and objectives of the NPPF. 
 

2 The proposals are situated in a rural and unsustainable location, isolated from public 
transport or local facilities, therefore encouraging dependence on private car use, 
which is contrary to the aims and objectives of policies CP1, CP2, CP3 and ST1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations, and the aims and objectives of the NPPF. 
 

10 Page 18



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1623/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Garage Site 

Amesbury Close 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4JA 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Grace & Oliver Sullivan 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing garages and construction of a new dwelling. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=565614 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to a letter of representation from 12 Amesbury Close. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings 3211_PL01, PL02D, PL03.1C, PL04.1E, PL05B. 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 The proposed window opening in the western flank elevation at first floor level shall 
be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 The proposed area for parking vehicles hereby approved shall be retained so that it 
is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in 
connection with the residential use of the site.  
 

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Class A and B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

11Page 19



7 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

8 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

10 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 

12 Page 20



any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   

11 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

12 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

13 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

14 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 

 

13Page 21



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1791/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Highfield 

High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9AF 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Keith Alder-Barber 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing bungalow. Construction of 6 no. one and two 
bed apartments in a single block with access and car parking. 
(Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=566270 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The proposed window openings in the north and south flank elevations shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 

14 Page 22



finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

6 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes, including 
details of the cycle and refuse store have been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority, in writing. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

7 No construction works above ground level shall take place until details of screen 
walls, fences or such similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and shall be erected and thereafter maintained in the agreed 
positions before the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved. 
 

8 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: DRAFT, 7814-10, submitted block plan, 7814-01 

9 Notwithstanding the position of the bin store and cycle store shown on drawing no 
'Draft Block Plan' dated June 14, no development shall take place until the position 
of the bin store and cycle store, has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The bin store and cycle store shall be thereafter built in 
the approved position prior to first occupation. 

 

15Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 

15 October 2014 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/1094/14 Fyfield Post Office 
Ongar Road 
Fyfield 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0RB 

 
Refuse Permission 

 
26 

2 EPF/1241/14 Stapleford Lodge Equestrian 
Centre 
Tysea Hill    
Stapleford Abbotts   
Essex  
RM4 1JP  

 
Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
30 

3 EPF/1441/14 185 High Street  
Chipping Ongar  
Essex  
CM5 9AA 

 
Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
38 

4 EPF/1723/14 12 Ravensmere  
Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4PS 

 
Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
46 

5 EPF/1785/14 Shell (UK) Ltd  
28 High Street  
Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4AE 

 
Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
52 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

48.5m

M e
l l s t
oc k

K w
et u

Pennybridge

Ke n d a l

1

2

Y o rk

B r o o k  E
n d

House
Tree

Ashwells

RiverShelter
View

Cotts

Denny

B a n f f  S p r i n g s Bruetts

C u lp e p e r

T h e
B u n g a l o w

1

Queens Head

B e a u m o n t

Brewetts

R o d m a n s

Ri v e r d a l e

(PH)

2

W e l l s t e a d

PO

Rushmere

Moena Stocks

H a w th o r n
H o u s e

Yew

House

4 5

L a u r a

Robins

The
Paddock

Chalet

Lesser

The

School House

B  1 8
4

Q
U

E E N  S T R E E T

GP

LB

Fyfield

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 1 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1094/14 
Site Name: Fyfield Post Office, Ongar Road 

Fyfield, CM5 0RB 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 26



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1094/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Fyfield Post Office 

Ongar Road 
Fyfield 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0RB 
 

PARISH: Fyfield 
 

WARD: Moreton and Fyfield 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Nikhil Patel  
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Erection of security shutters. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=563194 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposed development, by reason of the shutter box used to contain the grille, 
and its location on the exterior of the building would have a detrimental impact on 
the character of the immediate area and would fail to preserve or enhance the 
setting of nearby listed buildings contrary to policies DBE12 and HC12 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations and national guidance in NPPF.   
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Governance as appropriate to be presented for a Committee decision (Pursuant to The 
Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(k)) 
 
Description of Site:  
 
Fyfield Post Office is located in the centre of this small village. This cluster of dwellings includes a 
number of listed buildings and indeed the Post Office is attached to a listed cottage, Rodmans. 
The existing shop is single storey with a pitched roof, but from the front elevation the roof is 
obscured by a large fascia. 
 
Description of Proposal 
 
This is a revised application following the refusal of consent for security shutters across the front 
window and doors of the premises in 2012 (EPF/1779/12). The proposed security shutter on this 
occasion is the same as last time and would have a solid top and bottom with an open grill middle 
section. This would be contained in a box shutter to the front of the grill. Some months ago a 
petition signed by circa 320 local residents in support of a security shutter was received by the 
Council.  

Page 27



 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1779/12 - New shop front and shutter.   Refuse Permission - 21/12/2012. 
EPF/0194/13 New shop front with sliding door Approved 23/04/13 
 
Policies Applied:  
 
DBE12 – Shopfronts  
HC12 - Development Affecting the Setting of a Listed Building 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTAIONS:  
 
5 neighbours consulted: 1 reply received.  
 
CULPEPER HOUSE & PETITION SIGNED BY 320 RESIDENTS: Support. We cannot understand 
how a security shutter over the shop when it is closed would be detrimental to the character of the 
area even if there are Listed Buildings nearby. This shop is a vital local facility particularly for the 
elderly and infirm and this response shows the depth of local support for the applicant who has 
worked hard to transform this shop. We believe that this application should be put on the agenda 
for the next committee meeting owing to the clear support for the scheme.  
 
Letter from Gold Command (security specialists): Concern about the amount of burglaries at the 
site and the need for greater security. There is no real natural surveillance and police response 
times to Fyfield take many minutes. I do appreciate that the security shutters are not the most 
appealing visually but they are the most effective means to prevent burglaries. The issue with 
internal grills is the inward opening door and grills would not protect the glass.  
 
PARISH COUNCIL: No comments received.  
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
The main issue to consider is the design of the proposal and its impact on the character and 
appearance of the listed building.  
 
The immediate area around this shop is sensitive to change and includes a number of listed 
buildings, as stated, including the adjacent cottage. The immediate area is aesthetically pleasing 
and is a good example of a small, rural Essex village. 
 
The application was previously refused for the following reason; 
 
“The proposed development, by reason of the shutter box used to contain the grille, and its 
location on the exterior of the building would have a detrimental impact on the character of the 
immediate area and would fail to preserve or enhance the setting of nearby listed buildings 
contrary to policies DBE12 and HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations”. 
 
The Officer’s Report recorded the following concern; 
 
“Box shutters are generally discouraged in local, historic centres as they are modern features 
which tend to have an incongruous, jarring influence. This is considered the case here as the 
immediate area has a number of listed buildings and their setting and special character is worth 
preserving. The proposed replacement of the shopfront provides an opportunity to locate the 
shutter box internally or perhaps behind a remodelled fascia. An internal box shutter would render 
this proposal acceptable, however in its proposed, exposed position it is deemed to have a 
detrimental impact on the appearance of the area”.  

Page 28



 
The Local Authority have previously advised an internal shutter may offer a compromise but the 
applicant has responded that this would not be practical and therefore the same scheme has been 
submitted for determination.  
 
A new shop front design was approved in 2013 and it may have been possible at that stage to 
design a more secure shop front with internal shuttering.  It is however clear that this would not 
prevent the shop window being damaged. 
 
It is difficult to reverse the previous decision which, as with all applications, was determined in 
accordance with the Local Plan and there is policy support to refuse this scheme. There is no 
doubt that the proposed shutter, particularly its box housing, would detract from the character of 
the village. However the existing shop does not make much contribution visually and Members 
may feel that the addition of this shutter, which would serve the only shop in the village, would not 
significantly alter the existing situation. Officers are sympathetic to the plight of the applicant but it 
is rare that personal circumstances can be factored into the decision making process. However 
any consideration which relates to the development and use of land is capable of being a material 
planning consideration.  Community safety and security by design are relevant.  Members may 
feel that in this case any material harm to visual amenity is outweighed by other determining 
factors including the spate of burglaries at the premises.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed development, by reason of the projecting shutter box is deemed out of character 
and would have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the immediate area causing harm to 
the adjacent/nearby listed buildings. It is therefore, on balance, recommended for refusal as 
previously.  
  
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 2 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1241/14 
Site Name: Stapleford Lodge Equestrian Centre 

Tysea Hill, Stapleford Abbotts, RM4 1JP 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 
 

Page 30



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1241/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Stapleford Lodge Equestrian Centre 

Tysea Hill    
Stapleford Abbotts   
Essex  
RM4 1JP  
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Christine Port 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Convert part of an existing stable building into office and overnight 
staff accommodation. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=563830 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: FBU-101 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Classes A and B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without 
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 The proposed development shall only be used as ancillary accommodation to the 
existing livery use at Stapleford Lodge Equestrian Centre, Tysea Hill. 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 

Page 31



waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 

Page 32



accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

12 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing. 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

13 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application comprises a livery stables and yard, located off Tysea Hill. 
 
The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  A brook runs along the eastern boundary of 
the site.   
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for the conversion of part of an existing barn for use as 
living accommodation for a stable manager.  It is proposed that the residential accommodation 
would remain linked to the livery use.   
 
The accommodation within the residential unit would comprise two en-suite double bedrooms, a 
lounge/dining areas, a kitchen and a utility room, office and WC.  The office, utility room and WC 
would all be accessible from the remainder of the barn structure.   

Page 33



 
External alterations to the building would include its cladding with zinc and the insertion of 
windows and doors.   
 
The Applicant explains that there is a need for overnight accommodation because of the need to 
provide security for the horses within the livery.  The livery has not been associated with a dwelling 
since its previous owners, who were also the former owners of The Shrubbery, sold The 
Shrubbery.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0340/11.  Application for removal of condition 1 'Consent solely for the benefit of the applicant 
and no other person or persons' of planning permission EPF/1621/97. (Permanent consent for the 
change of use of existing stables to livery use.)  Approved 18/04/2011.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
DBE1 – Design of new Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
GB2A – Green Belt 
GB8A – Change of Use or Adaptation of Buildings 
 
Also relevant are the policies and planning principles contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework (‘The Framework’).   
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Stapleford Abbotts Council and to 9 neighbouring 
properties.  In addition, four site notices have been displayed adjacent to the site.  
 
The application has attracted the following responses: 
 
STAPLEFORD ABBOTTS PARISH COUNCIL. Objection.  The Parish Council OBJECTED to this 
application as it was considered inappropriate development of green belt land.  The Council was 
concerned the proposal appeared to be for a two-bedroomed complex with a relatively high 
standard of living accommodation to be provided, in contrast to the Design and Access Statement 
description of a “security watchman’s flat”.  Members commented that CCTV cameras and security 
alarms were readily available as an alternative option that would not encroach on the green belt. 

 
The Parish Council drew Essex County Council Highways’ attention to the planting of a hedge and 
erection of steel posts by the roadside that appeared to be on highway land, as depicted in the 
photo on the front page of the Design and Access Statement, and only served to impede 
pedestrian use of the verge. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
Principle of Development 
 
The livery was initially bound by a planning condition limiting it to operation by the occupiers of 
nearby dwelling ‘The Shrubbery’, to avoid the need for an additional dwelling within the site.  
However, that condition did not tie the two sites together and therefore became unreasonable and 
unnecessary once those named individuals had disposed of The Shrubbery.  Consequently the 

Page 34



condition was removed in 2011 and the livery remains with no domestic accommodation. 
 
Policy GB8A of the Local Plan requires that the proposed residential use would not have a 
materially greater impact than the present use on the Green Belt and the purpose of including land 
in it.  The building exists at present and whilst the proposed fenestration detailing and cladding 
would alter its appearance and add residential character, it is not considered that this would impact 
upon the purposes of including land within the Green Belt (as set out at paragraph 80 of the 
NPPF).  Whilst the occupation of the residential accommodation remains ancillary to the livery use, 
there would be no need for private amenity space and therefore no additional impact on the green 
belt in terms of the enclosure and domestication of land.  It is therefore necessary to ensure that 
this ancillary relationship remains, by way of imposing a planning condition.  Unlike the condition 
imposed in 1997, such a condition must tie the livery to the residential use in order that it remains 
effective.  On this basis, it is considered that the principle of the development is not inappropriate 
within the Green Belt.   
 
Concerns raised by the Parish Council regarding the high standard of development are noted.  
However, the scale of accommodation has been reduced from that shown originally at pre-
application stage and as it is contained within an existing building, it is considered that there is no 
material harm caused. 
 
Design 
 
The alterations to the building would involve the insertion of openings and the addition of new 
cladding.  The insertion of new windows/doors would considerably alter the appearance of the 
dwelling, giving it a clearly domestic character.  However, it is not considered that this change to 
its character would justify withholding planning permission.  Furthermore the elevation facing the 
street would accommodate the smaller windows and would, therefore, appear less conspicuous.     
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
Windows within the end elevation of the building will be facing towards the garden area of ‘The 
Shrubbery’, although there would be some screening by existing vegetation. This elevation would 
be separated from the shared boundary between the sites by approximately 11 metres.  Whilst this 
distance is not considerable, having regard to the vegetation screening and also that the affected 
area of the garden would be situated a significant distance from the dwelling itself, it is considered 
on balance that this relationship would be acceptable.   
 
Future occupiers of the proposed residential accommodation would benefit from good levels of 
light, outlook and privacy.  However, they would not have any private amenity space in residential 
use.  However, this is considered acceptable only because the dwelling is related to the livery use 
of the remainder of the site.  For this reason, it is necessary to secure by condition that the 
residential use is not separated from the livery stables in the future.  
 
Other Matters  
 
Contaminated Land - Due to its use as a Farmyard (cattle & pigs) and Stables (stud & livery) and 
the presence of made ground, there is the potential for contaminants to be present on site. As 
remediating worst case conditions should be feasible, it should be possible to deal with land 
contamination risks by way of condition. 
 
Land Drainage - The site lies within an Epping Forest District Council flood risk assessment zone.  
The proposed works will cause no increase in surface water runoff; therefore a Flood Risk 
Assessment is not required.  The site does not lie within any Environment Agency (EA) 
Floodzones; therefore consultation with the EA is not required. The applicant is proposing to 

Page 35



dispose of foul sewage by septic tank. Further details are required and may be secured by 
condition.  The applicant is proposing to dispose of surface water by soakaway. The geology of the 
area is predominantly clay and infiltration drainage may not be suitable for the site. Further details 
are required and may also be secured by condition.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable, subject to the 
imposition of the planning conditions discussed within this report.  It is, therefore recommended 
that consent be granted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 3 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1441/14 
Site Name: 185 High Street, Chipping Ongar  

CM5 9AA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 38



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1441/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 185 High Street  

Chipping Ongar  
Essex  
CM5 9AA 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Martin Brown 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Erection of a four bedroom dwelling with attached garage and 
associated works  (Revised application to EPF/2441/13) 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=564753 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:  
 
13126.01 
13126.02 Rev A 
13126.03 Rev B 
13126.04 Rev B 
13126.05 Rev A 
13126.06 Rev A 
13126.07 Rev A 
13126.08 Rev A 
13126.09 Rev A 
13126.10 Rev A 
 

2 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

3 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

4 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows (including head, sill 
and window reveal details) and doors, by section and elevation at scales between 
1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in 
writing prior to the commencement of any works. 
 

Page 39



5 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be 
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 

6 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.   
 
Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works. 
 
Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered. 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

8 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

9 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

Page 40



10 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall provide a 
Residential Travel Information Pack for sustainable transport. The 'pack' shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to first 
occupation. 
 

11 No conversion/demolition or preliminary groundworks of any kind shall take place 
until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological 
work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted 
by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

12 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing. 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Vacant area to rear of 185 High Street Ongar. 185 High Street is a two storey building, with 
relatively low pitched roof, extending rearwards significantly at two storeys with shallow pitch and 
flat roof areas. The site is adjacent to Sainsburys and the associated car parking area. 
 
The rear of the site is presently a combination of hard and soft landscaping. The hard surfacing is 
informally used as parking area and there are a number of trees. The main area subject to this 
application has been fenced off to the rear of the existing parking area and left as scrub. 
 
Access to the site is achieved alongside number 185 and a narrow, historic access. 
 
The site is in the Town Centre and within the designated Conservation Area. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
The application seeks consent to erect a 4 bedroom dwelling with associated basement and 
garage. Two of the bedrooms would be provided in the basement area. 
 
The proposed property has been designed to appear as a bungalow, with loft development and a 
sunken floor in the basement. The design includes a ground floor garage and private rear garden. 
 

Page 41



The current scheme has been revised from that previously submitted. Changes include revision to 
the rear dormer, creating a narrow vertical dormer, clad in zinc as opposed to previous eternity 
weather boarding. The front roof lights have been reduced in scale, the first floor flank window has 
been removed and detailing to the front door and garage door has been improved. In addition the 
application was accompanied by further highway and tree information. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2441/13 – Erection of a four bedroom dwelling with an attached garage and basement – 
Refused for 3 reasons: 

1) The design, scale and materials proposed for the new dwelling would fail to preserve or 
enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, contrary to policies HC6, 
HC7 and HC12 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the aims and objectives of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
2) The proposed new dwelling would intensify the use of an existing access that fails to 

provide suitable width and visibility to users. The consequence being an increase in the 
number of vehicles making unsafe entry and egress from the site, to the detriment of 
highway and pedestrian safety, contrary to policy ST4 of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
3) The development proposed results in the loss of protected trees and the applicant has 

failed to provide any information or justification to demonstrate that this is reasonable or 
that any protected trees may be retained, contrary to policy LL10 of the Adopted Local Plan 
and Alterations and the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
The applicants sought paid pre-application advice, however this did not include any car parking 
and advice contained within advised the applicants to approach the Conservation team regarding 
design. 
 
The applicants have also applied simultaneously for work to the main building on the front of the 
site and this has been approved under delegated powers. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
CP3   New Development 
HC6  Character, Appearance and setting of Conservation Areas 
HC7  Development within Conservation Areas 
HC12  Development affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings 
DBE1  Design of new Buildings 
DBE2  Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE3  Design in urban areas 
DBE8  Private amenity space 
LL8  Works to preserved trees 
LL9  Felling of preserved trees 
LL10  Adequacy of provision for landscape retention 
ST1  Location of development 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6   Vehicle parking 
 
NPPF 
 

Page 42



Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 16 
Site notice posted: Yes 
Responses received:   
 
181A HIGH STREET ONGAR: Raises concerns regarding ecology and wildlife and seeks the 
retention of the site in a fallow state. 
 
JOSEPH KING TRUST (OWNERS OF LISTED BUILDINGS ADJACENT): No objections provided 
sufficient measures are taken to ensure no damage to the structure and foundation of 
neighbouring Listed Buildings and also no loss of light to the first floor of 189 High Street ( a flat). 
 
4 ABBEY ROSE COURT, 181A HIGH STREET: Object to the location of the development, the 
proposed site being unsuitable, access inadequate, overshadowing, loss of light, loss of privacy, 
noise and disturbance from other occupants. Proposals would be cramped. Also raises wildlife 
concerns. 
 
ONGAR TOWN COUNCIL: Objects strongly to this application on highway safety grounds and 
does not feel that the objection contained in the decision notice for the failed application 
(EPF2441/13) has been addressed. The Council appreciates the revisions made since the original 
application and in the event of permission being considered would urge very strongly that the 
requirements of the landscaping, archaeological and trees officers should be implemented and 
that in view of the time the land has lain fallow and the known presence of protected or 
endangered species in the conservation area a wildlife survey could be appropriate. The Council 
repeats its former comment that prior to the last application being determined at least one tree 
appears to have been felled. 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be considered by Members are those raised in the previous grounds for 
refusal. Members should also consider whether the revisions to the scheme have introduced any 
new issues. 
 
Principle: 
The site is well located in relation to access to facilities and services and would make housing 
provision in the existing urban area in accordance with policies. 
 
Design: 
The revisions made to the scheme have not made significant alterations to the overall dwelling, but 
have made significant improvements to detailing. In a Conservation Area a high standard of design 
and finish is important in order to provide development that preserves or enhances the current 
character. The Conservation Officer has considered the revised scheme and the revisions made 
are such that the resultant property is now considered acceptable subject to conditions requiring 
even greater detailing of finishing around windows and provision of materials to ensure the finish is 
that which is expected. 
 
Neighbouring amenity 
The proposed new dwelling would have no significant adverse impact on neighbouring living 
conditions. Objections have been received, however these relate to construction issues or 
concerns regarding over development and construction to the rear of the High Street with 
associated issues around location and access. These matters in themselves would not result in 
significant adverse impacts to neighbouring living conditions. 
 

Page 43



Amenity Provision 
The proposals provide an acceptable size garden area for the proposals. Given the location is in a 
built up, urban area, to the rear of existing development and the proposed dwelling is notably lower 
in scale than neighbouring development, overlooking of the proposed garden area would arise. 
This would be apparent to any potential occupier prior to purchase and would not be to a degree 
that it would significantly detract from future amenities of occupiers, nor to an extent that is 
uncommon in urban areas, therefore this is noted, but not a significant concern. 
 
Landscaping 
The developer indicates in this revised application that landscaping would be retained to the Tree 
Officer’s satisfaction. As such subject to conditions, approval is recommended.  
 
Subsequent to the last application, some vegetation removal and clearance has occurred, to allow 
access to permit the tree survey to take place. The site clearance was carried out in accordance 
with the Wildlife and Countryside Act and Officers are satisfied this raises no planning issues. 
 
Parking 
The proposed development incorporates an integral garage and parking to the front. At the time of 
pre-application advice no parking was provided and this was considered acceptable in a Town 
Centre. The provision of parking is however, helpful in respect of making provision for occupants. 
The site is to the rear of the High Street and makes use of an existing narrow access between 
buildings. 
 
Previously there was no demonstration of the number of vehicle movements associated with the 
proposals and no details of how the access would be achieved around existing parking to the rear 
of the High Street in this area. The additional details supplied have been considered by the 
Highway Authority and their previous objections have now been withdrawn. As a result of the 
consent for change of use of the office building to residential, with a change to the parking areas in 
connection with the new use, even with this development there will be a reduction in traffic 
movement over that which previously existed and even though the access is poor there are no 
grounds to refuse the proposal.  The Highway Authority seek to secure travel packs for future 
occupiers by way of condition. 
 
Other matters 
The Essex County Architectural services have advised that due to the historic nature of the 
settlement, the site may contain archaeological deposits or features and as such a condition for 
adequate monitoring should be applied. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The revised scheme has addressed the previous reasons for refusal, overcoming issues raised by 
consultees. The objection of the Local Council remains; however on the basis of policy, there 
appears no reason to withhold permission. 
 
The design is now considered acceptable and the Conservation, Highway and Landscaping 
Officers have all withdrawn previous concerns. There is no significant loss to neighbouring living 
conditions and detailed matters for landscaping and parking are now considered acceptable. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Jenny Cordell 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 574481 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov 

Page 44



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 4 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1723/14 
Site Name: 12 Ravensmere, Epping  

CM16 4PS 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 46



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1723/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 12 Ravensmere  

Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4PS 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Melanie Eichhorn-Schurig 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Proposed detached annexe building with habitable space on 
ground floor and swimming pool in basement level. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=566013 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

4 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

5 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 47



This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
    
Description of Site:  
 
12 Ravensmere is located in a cul-de-sac of dwellings off Kendal Avenue close to the town centre 
in Epping. The house on site is detached and set above the level of the road. The rear garden is 
fairly generous with the level of the garden above that of the ground floor level of the house and is 
reached up a set of steps from a small patio area. The property is separated from its neighbour to 
the north (No11) by a close boarded fence and beyond this on the neighbours plot is a hedge. 
There is a fall in land levels from No11 to the application site. The rear of the site abuts the 
Metropolitan Green Belt and there is a preserved tree close to the boundary.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The applicant seeks consent to construct an outbuilding along the common boundary with No11. 
The building would be two storeys with one level located below ground level and the space used to 
provide a swimming pool. This would involve further excavation below the lower floor level to form 
the pool. The upper floor would include a guest bedroom, bathroom and a gym. The building would 
have a footprint measuring approximately 15.2m long x 4.75m wide and would retain a gap of 
approximately 1.0m to the boundary. The building would have a slanted roof which at its highest 
point would be 3.5m above the ground level. The plans indicate that the garden would be 
excavated down to approximately level with the base of the rear exit doors of the house. The 
building would be finished largely in render. 
 
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/0053/14 - Proposed annexe building, to provide ancillary accommodation. Withdrawn by the 
applicant - 19/02/2014. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
DBE1 – Design of new Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring Properties  
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
LL10 – Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL: Objection. Committee object to this application due to its size and scale, which 
would have a detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbours. Committee note and share the 
concerns of the Council’s Trees and Drainage Officers. The absence of any plan to deal with the 
issue of sub ground drainage is an issue and needs further investigation. The scheme is therefore 
contrary to policies DBE1 and DBE2. Committee were of the opinion that a similar building along 
the rear boundary would have significantly less impact.  
 

Page 48



4 neighbours consulted – 4 replies received.  
 
EPPING SOCIETY: Objection. The building is excessive in size and scale and would have a 
detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbours. The Society shares the concerns of the Council’s 
Trees and Drainage Officers. The proposed building would have a detrimental impact on the 
amenity of neighbours and may also have a physical impact.  
 
9A RAVENSMERE: Objection. The proposal is an overintensification of the site and unsympathetic 
to the surrounding area. The proposed use for the building is inappropriate to the area.  
 
10 RAVENSMERE: Objection. The proposed levels submitted do not appear to represent the 
existing ground levels on site which will have the effect of raising the ground level making the 
structure more visible. The mass of the building is considered excessive and the building would be 
visibly conspicuous. The proposed building would encroach into the root spread of the protected 
tree and this could have a detrimental impact on its health.  
 
11 RAVENSMERE: Objection.  Concern that the development will be conspicuous from the Green 
Belt having a detrimental impact on openness. The size massing and form will lead to an 
intensification in the use of the site and could easily become a self contained property. The 
application represents an unsympathetic overdevelopment of the site which will cause light 
pollution. Concern that the development will result in interference with the natural groundwater flow 
increasing the risk of localised flooding. There are inaccuracies with regards to the drawings and 
particularly the proposed ridge relative to our boundary. The hedge is shown as continuous and 
this is not the case. Concern about how lorries will access the site during the construction phase. 
The Tree Report does not refer to our existing coniferous hedge, an established laurel tree or 
other nearby trees. We are concerned that the issue of a basement construction has not been fully 
assessed and that reports should be submitted addressing whether such a scheme could progress 
without having an impact on groundwater flow in the vicinity. Concern that an approved 
development of this nature could set a precedent for further inappropriate development.  
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
The main issues to consider are the impacts of the proposed extension on neighbour amenity, 
design and appearance, the preserved tree adjoining the site, issues with regards to land drainage 
and the basement construction and the comments of consultees.  
 
Note: It is noted that the submitted plans suggest that the ground level falls away from the base of 
the rear doors to the end of the garden. In fact the level of the rear amenity space is above the 
level of the base of the door and accessed up a set of steps. Therefore the existing ground level 
plan submitted (999.06) is inaccurate. However this does not prevent an informed decision being 
made. It appears what is proposed is to excavate the garden area down to the level of the patio 
area adjacent to the rear doors. A finished level for the garden and as such the height of the 
building can therefore be determined.  
Amenity  
 
The proposed building would run for some distance along the common boundary with the 
neighbour to the north, No11. Objections have been received from the occupants of this dwelling 
with regards to impact on amenity and that the structure would appear overbearing. There is no 
detailed guidance, either local or national, which refers to outbuildings and what is considered a 
suitable size. It is accepted that a property will be served by outbuildings and indeed the vast 
majority can be constructed as permitted development under Class E of the General Permitted 
Development Order (GDPO). This building would not qualify as it is effectively two storeys and 
also has a ridgeline higher than what is permitted. The building also contains primary living 
accommodation. However there is no reason why the proposed footprint could not be constructed 
as a permitted development building and its use would also be incidental to the main building and 

Page 49



as such would remain subsidiary. The overall footprint of the building is therefore acceptable in 
terms of what is suitable for an ancillary building and is not dissimilar to summerhouse structures 
which are routinely constructed under permitted development and do not fall under the control of 
Local Planning Authorities.  
 
The issue with regards to impact on the amenity of occupants of No11 is whether the proposed 
structure would be overbearing when viewed from the rear garden area. As stated the proposed 
structure does run along the majority of the common boundary. However a gap is retained to the 
boundary and the rear amenity space of No11 is relatively generous which would significantly 
reduce any oppressive feeling. The adjoining neighbours state that the plans indicate a constant 
screen from an existing hedge when this is not the case. However it is evident that the existing 
hedge and fence would provide a fairly solid screen which would shield the proposed structure. 
Although the concerns of neighbours and the Town Council are noted it is difficult to accept that 
the building would be excessively injurious to the amenity of neighbouring residents. Some impact 
is recognised but is considered, on balance, acceptable.  
 
Design  
 
In terms of design the proposed building raises no strong issues of concern. The bulk and scale of 
the building has been described as excessive but there are no policy restrictions which prevent 
large ancillary outbuildings. The use of appropriate materials would ensure a satisfactory design.  
 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
Concern had initially been expressed that the submission had not made adequate provision for the 
preserved tree adjoining the site. However on receipt of further information the Trees and 
Landscaping section of the Council has removed their objection and have instead suggested that 
conditions relating to tree protection and the removal of excavated material are included. Whilst 
the applicant has provided a tree report, the tree protection condition does need to be included in 
full, and new reports will need to be submitted for approval prior to commencement. This is 
because at this stage, all the applicant is required to do is to show that the development is feasible 
without a detrimental impact on trees. As stated such details can be agreed by condition.  
 
Basement Development  
 
Much concern has been expressed about the fact that a large section of this building will be 
subterranean. In that regard the Land Drainage Section of the Council has been consulted with 
regards to this development. This advice records that the site does not lie within an Epping Forest 
or Environment Agency Floodzone. Details of how foul and surface water is to be disposed is 
required and this can be agreed by condition.  
 
With regards to the basement, neighbours have raised concern that supporting reports have not 
been submitted demonstrating the feasibility of this project without having a negative impact on 
groundwater flow. Such developments are not common in the district but from the viewpoint of the 
Local Planning Authority, advice is provided by the Land Drainage Section. This concludes that 
any approved scheme should include the following informative; 
 
“In certain soil conditions, particularly in areas with known springs, subterranean development can 
impact on groundwater flows and levels. This form of development has been known to block or 
redirect natural groundwater flows, causing subsidence, instability, saturation and/or flooding 
where this was not previously occurring. If your proposed development leads to these effects on 
neighbouring property and structures, you could be liable for civil litigation. You are advised to 
thoroughly investigate the hydrological and flooding implications of your proposed development.” 
 

Page 50



In light of this advice the construction of the basement area presents no clear grounds for refusal 
from a planning perspective. The floorspace will be entirely below ground and will have little to no 
impact on amenity or the character or appearance of the area. Any future issues with regards to 
subsidence or flooding would leave the applicant open to civil litigation and this is a matter they 
must consider and thoroughly investigate. However there are no planning grounds to refuse the 
basement element of this scheme, particularly as the professional advice from the Land Drainage 
section is not that consent should be withheld.  
 
Other Matters 
 
The fact that this building would be visible from the Green Belt has been recorded as another 
factor weighing against an approval. However a domestic outbuilding within the curtilage of a 
dwelling which is located within a cul-de-sac of properties in a built up area would not seriously 
affect the open character of the Metropolitan Green Belt. It is also stated within comments 
received that the proposed use for the building is inappropriate. However ancillary living 
accommodation and covered swimming pools are common enough ancillary facilities provided at 
residential properties in this district.  Swimming pools can, in fact, generally be created as 
permitted development.  
 
Concern is expressed that the building could be used as a self contained and separate unit. It is 
considered that owing to the location of the building it could not be severed from the main house 
easily. In any case any such action would require planning consent and would fall under the 
control of the Local Planning Authority for consideration. The concern about lorry movements at 
the site is unfortunately a necessary by product of construction developments and a refusal of 
consent on these grounds would not be easily sustained. Similarly, any refusal of consent with 
regards to concern about setting a precedent requires caution and each application must be 
judged on its own merits. In any case Officers have found that this scheme is on balance 
acceptable and as such an appropriate form of development.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed development is considered to have an acceptable level of impact on the amenity of 
adjoining residents and would not result in excessive loss of amenity. The proposed design is 
considered acceptable. It is considered that the preserved tree can be protected and its health 
ensured and suitable arrangements can be agreed by condition. It is not considered that the fact 
the development contains a basement warrants refusal but the applicant is advised that any 
hydrological and flooding implications are thoroughly investigated. In light of this appraisal it is 
recommended that consent is granted subject to conditions.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

1 0 7
. 0 m

1 0 8
. 2 m

1 0 7
. 0 m

1 0 8
. 2 m

66

45

Co mmu n it y Ce n t re

7 4 b
7 4 a

Court
Pelly

45

Co mmu n it y Ce n t re

7 4

42 42

7 4

7 4 b
7 4 a

58 to 62

7 5

6 7

58 to 62
48

64

7 5

6 7

48

64

66

26 26

P H

P H

36

P H

P H

36

7 8 a

F o r e s t  C
o u r t

1 to 9

5 1 a

4 7

5 7
5 3 a

5 1
5 3

4 7

5 7
5 3 a

5 1 a

5 1
5 3

Garage
3 7

3 3

3 5

24

3 7

3 3

Garage
3 5

1

12

7

1

1d

2

1 1

1d

1

2

1 1

1

55
55

9 to 22
9 to 22

Pelly
Court

to

23
 to

 28

39 to 44 3 8

2 9

23
 to

 28

39 to 44

to
3 8

2 9

V e t
e r i n

a r y

C e
n t r e

7 8 a

F o r e s t  C
o u r t

1 to 9

V e t
e r i n

a r y

C e
n t r e

8 6

55

8 8

9 0

8 6

8 8

9 0

55

9 0 c

22

9 0 d
C h a p e l  V i e w1

22

9 0 d

24

9 0 c C h a p e l  V i e w1

12

An n e s  Co u rt

12

4
3

2

1

An n e s  Co u rt

4
3

2

1

9 2 b

9 2
9 2 b

9 2

1 0 0
9 89 8

1 0 0

12

7

H E M N A L L  S T R E E T

B E
E C

H
P L A

C E

H I G H  S T R E E T

H ALF M O O N  LAN E

H E M N A L L  S T R E E T

B E
E C

H
P L A

C E

H I G H  S T R E E T

H ALF M O O N  LAN E

LB

Q ueens A l l ey

LB

Q ueens A l l ey

* *

*

**
*

*
*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 5 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1785/14 
Site Name: Shell (UK) Ltd, 28 High Street  

Epping, CM16 4AE 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 52



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1785/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Shell (UK) Ltd  

28 High Street  
Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4AE 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Shell UK Retail 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing sales building and car/jet wash and 
replacement with a new sales building and increased parking 
facilities. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=566239 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings PLG01-PLG06, OSP. 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

5 The premises hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the hours of 
24:00 to 07:00 on Monday to Saturday and Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

7 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 

Page 53



Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

8 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

10 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   

Page 54



11 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

12 The use of the equipment hereby permitted in reference to application EPF/1785/14 
must cease during any period that the rating level of noise (as defined by 
BS4142:1997) emitted from the HVAC Units exceeds 5dB(A) above the prevailing 
background noise level.  The measurement position and assessment shall be made 
according to BS4142:1997(or such other standard which may supersede it). 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than four objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – 
Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located within the identified Town Centre Boundary of Epping, on the 
southern side of the High Road. The site is occupied by a petrol station and includes a garage 
forecourt with a canopy above. On the western side of the site is a sales/goods area and towards 
the rear is a car wash structure. The site has in/out access points onto the High Road and there 
are residential properties on the western and southern boundaries. An alleyway runs along the 
western flank and a public house/nightclub is on the property’s eastern flank. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks consent to demolish the existing sales area and car wash and construct a 
new sales building. This would have a larger footprint than the existing building and would be 
closer to the rear/side boundary. The building would have a floor area measuring 11.0m wide x 
25.5m deep. The building would be flat roofed with eaves to a height of 4.2m. A storage area to a 
height of 3.0m would be positioned on the rear section of the building. 23 parking spaces would be 
created on site. The existing canopy will remain with the section linking to the existing building 
removed. The plans indicate that some small shrubs and trees would be removed to facilitate the 
works.  
 
The existing car wash, jet wash and vacuum facilities are to be removed. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
There is a long history of applications on the site but none relevant to this proposal.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas 

Page 55



DBE6 – Parking in New Developments  
DBE9 – Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
RP4 – Contaminated Land  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: No comments received at the time of the report.  
 
21 neighbours consulted and site notice displayed: 6 replies received.  
 
3 CHAPEL VIEW: Objection. We would like to ask that the trees to the rear of the development on 
the Queen’s Alley side are not taken away.  They were planted originally as a screen to protect the 
nearby houses from noise and provide a more visually acceptable view. We are concerned that 
the proposed development will appear overbearing from our garden area. We feel the building 
would be better located on the opposite side of the site.  
 
CHAPEL COTTAGE: Objection. The existing trees and shrubs to be removed are the only 
protection between myself and what is currently a quiet garage - they are clearly intending to 
increase footfall by increasing the number of parking spaces from 4 to 21 which will therefore 
increase noise - I would therefore strongly object to the removal of any of these trees and shrubs 
which act not only as a noise defence but also a security barrier.  I also note there is no indication 
of opening hours - will these be remaining the same or is there an intention to extend these? 
 
88 HEMNALL STREET: Objection. Concern about the loss of tree and the fact that the building will 
be closer to the boundary and could provide a security threat.  
 
20 HIGH STREET: Objection.  I have the following concerns: Opening hours are not specified, the 
cooling units back on to my garden/back of house. This would be extremely noisy. Light pollution- 
depending on opening hours my house could be lit all night long. 
 
22 HIGH STEET: Objection. The proposed plans display a greatly enlarged retail area 
repositioned to within just 2 metres of our boundary and the installation of 6 industrial HVAC units, 
which presumably will be operating night and day to within just 7 metres from our dining room and 
main bedroom. If noisy refrigeration units are required then surely they should be placed to face 
the petrol station and as far away from adjoining residential properties as possible. The rear of the 
proposed retail area will now stretch to almost the entire rear boundaries of residential properties 
22 and 20 High Street. Previously the smaller retail shop had been clad in brick which was 
perhaps more sympathetic to the area it was situated in. The proposed plan shows that the rear of 
the enlarged retail area which faces adjoining homes will be clad in Shell White wall panels. This 
corporate colour scheme has no commercial value as it only faces residential properties and will 
be an eyesore for residents who will have a wall of white cladding covering almost the entire views 
from the rear of their homes. Concern that the design of the new building will open up residential 
properties to noise and light disturbance and that the premises will open increased hours with 
increased lorry movements to and from the site.  
 
EPPING SOCIETY: Objection. Concern about the loss of trees and shrubs on site and that these 
should be retained or replaced.  
 

Page 56



Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application relate to; 
 

• Principle of the Development  
• Design Considerations 
• Residential Amenity 
• Highway Matters/Parking  
• Comments of Consultees  

 
Principle of the Development  
 
The overall principle of the development is considered acceptable. Any development which 
increases the retail element of town centres and is a potential employment generator should be 
encouraged subject to all other material planning considerations.  
 
Design Considerations 
 
The proposed building is bulkier and has a larger footprint than the existing building on site. 
However this site is of a size to comfortably facilitate a larger structure and its position along the 
flank provides more space for parking. From an aesthetic viewpoint the proposed design is not 
considered unacceptable and fairly typical of such buildings. Concern has been expressed about 
the proposed use of materials but the materials as detailed on plan No PLG6 raises no strong 
issues of contention and sample details can be agreed by condition.   
 
Residential Amenity  
 
There are a number of residential properties in close proximity to the site and the new building 
would be positioned closer to the dwellings to the rear. Concern has been expressed that some of 
the existing planting would be lost at the rear corner of the site and that this would expose 
residential properties to view of the new structure. Whilst this is the case the new building would 
be set off the boundary and as the store area (3.0m in height) would be closest to the boundary it 
would not appear particularly overbearing or result in a material loss of amenity. Whilst the 
retention of all shrubs may be desirable this is not considered essential in order to make this 
development acceptable in planning terms. The position of the alleyway would further reduce 
impact on the rear garden area of 3 Chapel View. Similarly the new building retains a reasonable 
gap, and is located across an alleyway, from No’s 20 & 22 High Street. It is not considered that 
any impact would be excessive.  
 
With regards to Chapel Cottage it is not considered that the removal of some of the vegetation on 
the boundary would seriously impact on the amenity of residents of this property. The majority of 
the boundary is made up of the flank wall of the house and as stated the proposed built form is 
fairly low set at the boundary. Furthermore the existing wall around the garage will provide a fairly 
solid screen.  
 
Concern has been expressed about the proposed positioning of air conditioning units to the rear of 
the sales building and their potential impact on amenity. This would replace an existing unit. The 
noise emitting from such units can be controlled by a suitably worded condition and furthermore if 
the units operate to a nuisance level, recourse is available through separate environmental 
legislation. The garage site and residential properties are to some extent conflicting land uses 
which have co-existed for some time and indeed the garage predates both 3 Chapel View and 
Chapel Cottage as residential properties. Some disturbance will be inevitable in such scenarios 
but the appropriate conditions will ensure that the impact does not become a serious issue for 
neighbours.  Paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework states “…decisions should 

Page 57



aim to recognise that development will often create some noise and existing businesses wanting to 
develop in continuance of their business should not have unreasonable restrictions put on them 
because of changes in nearby land uses since they were established…” 
 
Concern has been raised that there are no proposed opening hours with the proposed 
development. The opening hours on the original scheme stated that no part of the premises should 
operate between 24:00 and 07:00 each day and this seems a reasonable condition to carry over to 
this development.  
 
The scheme includes the removal of the existing car wash, jet wash and vacuum from the site 
which will result in potentially less noise generation overall. 
 
Parking and Highway Safety  
 
There is no change proposed to the existing access and egress arrangement to the site; this 
arrangement provides good visibility and geometry from and onto the High Street. The proposal is 
also providing sufficient parking for the scale of development proposed. Consequently there are no 
highway safety, capacity or efficiency issues associated with this development. 
 
Consultee Comments  
 
Due to its use as a Refuelling and Repair Garage there is the potential for contaminants to be 
present on site. The standard land contamination conditions are therefore deemed necessary. 
Details of foul and surface water drainage are also necessary.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed development would result in a site which would make a more positive impact on the 
retail provision within Epping and could generate some low scale employment. The design of the 
building is considered acceptable and further details can be agreed by condition. It is not 
considered that the amenity of neighbouring properties will be seriously infringed. It is therefore 
recommended that consent is granted subject to appropriate conditions.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 58


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 14-15 version 2

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	28 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

